Rocklands Parish Council (RPC) Minutes of Annual Parish Council Meeting (AGM) 7.00pm on Monday 3 July 2023

Present: David Howie Chair

Amanda-Jayne Buckland

Tim Ford Anne Jones Bryan Swaddling

Kim Austin Clerk

Also present: 13 members of the public.

The meeting opened at 19:00

1. To consider accepting apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Cllr. Ed Connolly who had other meetings to attend, Cllr. Richard Harrison who was on holiday and Dave Thomas. Apologies were accepted.

2. To record declarations of interest from members in any items on the agenda

There were no declarations of interest.

3. To approve the minutes of the last Parish Council Meeting on Monday 15 May 2023

The minutes had been circulated to all councillors prior to the meeting. All councillors approved the minutes. The minutes were duly signed by the Chair, Cllr. David Howie.

4. To discuss any matters arising from the minutes (6 March 2023) not on the agenda.

There were no matters arising.

5. To adjourn the meeting for public participation

The meeting was adjourned at 19:04. The Clerk would check why the minutes from the previous meeting were not available to view on the Parish website. The meeting resumed at 19:05.

6. To update on First Time Sewerage (RH).

Cllr. Howie read out Cllr. Harrison's report that had been circulated to councillors prior to the meeting. As I write, all works on Attleborough Road have now been completed and the roadworks and traffic control removed. Areas of the road have been repaired and tarmacced, and potholes filled-in and resurfaced. Thieves Lane is currently closed except for access, and trenching works and lateral connections are currently underway. Trenching work and lateral connections on Chapel Street continue towards the B1077 crossroads, and currently have much further to go.

Cllr. Howie had received an update from Thomas Say (Anglian Water):

What have we done so far?

- We've installed over 1370 meters of our new pipes using a combination of techniques.
- Our pumping station is completed, the electrical components and kiosk have been installed with our fencing.
- We apologise for the delays but our work in Attleborough road is now complete.

What happens next?

- We have completed the construction of 11 manholes with only 4 to go. 2 On Chapel Street and a further 2 on St Peter's Close.
- We'll continue to install the pipe on Chapel Street and lay connection points as we go.
- Work on St Peter's Close is underway, with our sewer pipe and laterals will be installed after.
 As we lay laterals on St Peter's Close and the new sewer pipe access to residents will always be maintained.

Signad	Date	
Signed	 Date	

It had been reported that now the work had been completed on the Attleborough Road, the houses were experiencing vibrations. The complaint will be investigated.

7. To update on SID (flashing speed sign) (RH)

Cllr. Howie read out the main points from Cllr. Harrison's report that had been circulated to councillors prior to the meeting. Tope speed was 70mph (could have been an emergency vehicle?) There has been a decrease in number of vehicle movements (7.2%) and an increase in speeding vehicles (0.6%) and an increase in vehicles open to enforcement (4.3%). See graphs at the end of these minutes.

The speed sign was deployed on Attleborough Road, for traffic approaching from Great Ellingham, on 09/06/2023.

a) Attleborough Road (B1077) - traffic from Great Ellingham

Deployed: 10:00 hrs 09 June 2023 Finished: 11:00 hrs 30 June 2023

The analysis results show: 28,266 vehicles detected Average 1,344 vehicles/day

Morning peak time - 08:00 to 09:00 Afternoon peak time - 15:30 to 16:30

23,953 vehicles (84.7%) within 40 mph speed limit

4,313 vehicles (15.3%) exceeding speed limit

of which 1,212 vehicles (4.3%) over 45 mph - and likely open to a fine* Top speed: 70 mph - 17/06/2023 at 00:20

Since the last deployment facing towards Great Ellingham:

- vehicle movements averaged 1,344 per day a 7.2% decrease in daily traffic volumes.
- vehicles speeding numbered 4,313 (15.3%) 0.6% more vehicles speeding.
- vehicles open to enforcement action numbered 1,212 (4.3%) 0.1% more vehicles open to enforcement.

Please note that, since both Tim and I are about to go on holiday - and we also want to bring the sign move date back to close to the change of month - the sign has been deployed facing Great Ellingham for just three weeks this time. However, daily averages and monitoring period percentages are still valid and comparable.

This is the first deployment on Attleborough Road for quite some time - as no monitoring was worthwhile whilst the roadworks and traffic control were in place.

Thanks once again to Tim for his valuable support in deploying the Speed Sign.

The signs have just been moved and next report will contain a whole month's figures.

There has been an accident recently, just past Ridgeons, but was not serious.

Cllr. Harrison sends these reports to Damion Wickes.

8. To update on Flooding (RH). To include ditches at Mill Lane/Green Lane.

Cllr. Howie read out Cllr. Harrison's report that had been circulated to councillors prior to the meeting. We still await a response from the Head of the NCC Water Management team, regarding arranging a visit by Karen Paterson of the Environment Agency, and the NCC Water Management Team - to involve key stakeholders/landowners in identifying agreed surface water flooding mitigation measures. This will be chased again.

Development at Mill Lane / Green Lane (Kemp Meadow)

A resident recently noticed that tall close-boarded fencing was being erected on the property side of the drainage ditches on the periphery of the site making the ditches inaccessible for clearing and maintenance. We raised a formal complaint with Breckland Planning Enforcement and on 29 June, we received a response, informing us that they have inspected the site and taken photographs.

They stated that: 'It is considered that the fencing falls within permitted development tolerances as set out in the General Permitted Development Order 2015 and therefore Planning Permission is not required'. (This is the close board fencing that has never been shown on the landscape plan, and which prevents lengths of the surface water drainage ditches being accessed for essential maintenance.)

C'	D . 1 .	
Signed	ΙΙΙΣΤΩ	
JIKITEU	 Date	

And 'The matter of maintenance of the ditch is a civil matter between management company and Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFA).' In order to protect this area of the village from potential surface water flooding, we will be taking this matter further with the LLFA and others.

It was reported at the meeting, a lot of extra soil has been placed in several areas (back gardens) to raise the level and is only held in place by the fencing. Site drawings required construction of a new drainage ditch between the sports field and the drainage area - but this has not been done.

9. To update on Highways and to consider the Invitation to Bid for NCC Parish Partnership Scheme 2024-2025 for local highway improvements.

Cllr. Howie welcomed Damion Wicks of Norfolk Constabulary, who had very kindly agreed to attend this Parish Council meeting. Damion introduced himself as a local Police Constable and Beat Manager based in Attleborough, dealing with community issues in the local parishes. A SNAP meeting is held 4/5 times a year and speeding is always prioritised. A meeting was held at Rocklands Community Shop to discuss speeding in Rocklands, particularly in the Street and near the school. Both Damion and Matthew Lines from NCC Highways attended.

The Parish Council had been notified of the Breckland Council 50:50 Parish Partnership Scheme for local highways improvements. £300,000 has been provisionally allocated on a 50/50 basis. Any bids to be submitted by 8 December 2023 and successful bids notified by March 2024. Acceptable bids could include: Small lengths of formal footway, trods, improved crossing facilities, improvements to Public Rights of Way. Flashing signs to tackle speeding/Mobile Signs (SAM2). Part-time 20mph signs with flashing warning lights, outside schools. "Keep Clear" carriageway markings outside schools. New Bus Shelter or Shelter Lighting. Electric Vehicle Charging Points.

Matthew Lines has agreed for the 'keep clear lines' around the school to be repainted towards the end of the summer. Calming features such as humps and chicanes to reduce speeding were ruled out due to farm vehicles, and tractors and trailers using the roads.

Flashing speed signs, and 20mph limits at school times may help. Matthew Lines was keen. Cost is between £7-9,000. Would need funding. Cllr. Buckland would check prices. Cllr. Howie had contacted Ed Conolly and would meet with him next week to see if he could help.

A major concern is the children walking from the school to the Playing fields along the street to use the facilities. An accident waiting to happen.

Damion said the matters raised were all common ones. The police do look at the statistics for accidents for prioritisation. The Safety Camera Partnership, Attleborough give a good coverage of the area. A County resource that is in high demand. Need to offer education around speeding and change the mindset of drivers. Damion said some schools stagger arrival times for pupils to reduce volume of traffic and stop double parking. This was done during Covid. Dave Jones said mornings are more problematic than afternoons. There was some natural staggering of arrival at Rocklands school due to breakfast clubs. The problem is the builders working close by are using the school parking slots, causing more double parking. Makes sense to stagger times but not sure how disruptive this would be. Could send letters home to parents highlighting problem with children getting out of cars without adequate parental control, speeding, parking sensibly and maybe staggered arrival times. Dave Jones asked if Damion could make an appearance at the school. Damion said this can help but he has no powers over parking. Could the parents park at the Village Hall and the children walk supervised to the school? Called a 'walking bus'.

Speeding in The Street is very worrying and getting worse.

To receive news from village organisations and churches Rocklands Primary School (DJ)

The school continues to thrive and remains a popular choice with parents, who recognise its special merits. Its relatively small size offers pupils and staff a happy 'familial" environment where everyone feels known and respected by everyone else. The pupils are confident, caring and inevitably perform well on all fronts in the calm, orderly atmosphere. Best wishes to our older pupils due to leave and move onto their secondary school stage of education and a warm welcome to those joining us at the

Signed	 Date	

start of their school experience. The school benefits from the lively support of The Friends of Rocklands School and a strong governing body.

Rocklands School is Federated with Great Ellingham, sharing the same senior leaders, governing body, and generally benefiting from close collaboration in so many ways. It was pleasing to see Great Ellingham receive such a strong report following its recent Ofsted inspection and Rocklands expects to be inspected any time soon.

Rocklanders Youth Group (DJ)

The Club serves a wide age range, from 8 - 18. It is pleasing to see older members progress to assisting roles. The small core team of dedicated leaders who run club have been very appreciative of the additional support offered by the 'Voluntary Assistant Leaders'. These are parents who have joined a roster, kindly offering additional support during sessions, two at a time.

Sessions are lively, with numbers regularly reaching the mid-thirties. As always, our members are superb and appreciate the type of experience offered between 6.30 and 8.30 On Friday nights. Just recently they entertained themselves and the leaders present to an amazing Talent Show, which included almost everyone in one way or another. Furthermore, they organised it almost entirely themselves and it proceeded in the happiest atmosphere of mutual support and appreciation which inspired confidence in all the participants.

Little Rocky's Toddler Group (SB)

Maintaining numbers of 25+ each week. We have purchased new resources for the older siblings for the holiday period.

Now the warmer weather is here the children spend most of the session playing outside which is why it is critical that we develop the outdoor learning environment. There was a team of volunteers who turned up on Sunday 4 June to demolish the old shed. Special thanks to Richard Baker from Little Ellingham who left us a trailer to use for all the broken parts of the shed and disposed of them for us. The concrete base has now been laid and hedge/foliage trimmed ready for the installation. VH committee paid for the concrete pad. The new shed will be installed on Wednesday 5 July by Breckland Garden Buildings. The Parish Council has been approached for funding to pay for guttering and water butts. Once everything is in place John Brown will construct some raised beds for the children to use as a planting area.

Our fund-raising event on Sunday 2 July, Strawberry Tea, to raise £600 to buy a mud kitchen and kitchen utensils for the children was a roaring success. We had a 'totaliser' which was updated throughout the afternoon. There was so much excitement in the room when we realised, we had reached our target! A massive thank you to everyone who worked so tirelessly to make the day so enjoyable. So many people attended/donated cakes and gave so generously to help us on our way. We just cannot thank people enough.

We had a visit from delegates of Children's Services on 16 June who wished to speak with parents about the availability of services across the county. They also discussed the importance of parents engaging in language play with their children. All parents received a Let's Play Together bag which was full of resources.

As we are approaching the end of the school academic year, we know some of our children will be moving on to start their learning journey in schools. We will make sure each of our children has something to remember us by. Our numbers will change slightly in September, but we are picking up new families all the time. Our holiday sessions are now available for parents to book and bring siblings up to the age of 9. We were so busy last summer, and we are really insisting that people must book their sessions. Our last term time Friday session will be 21 July. Class 1 from Rocklands have been invited to have an afternoon's play with us on this last day of term. We trialled this arrangement last year and it was very well received. The first holiday session will be Friday 28 July when the hours will be extended slightly from 9-12 to allow families greater flexibility.

St. Peter's Church (John Brown).

There will be a joint service of the 2 churches at St. Peter's Church at 11 o'clock, 30 July; Songs of praise, free picnic in the church, live music, guitarist and a short service at 12 o'clock.

Signed	 Date	

White Hart Public House (Dave Thomas)

Dave Thomas had sent his apologies in an email that also advised that he had just reported the leaking water main upon the bridleway adjacent to the pub to Anglian Water. Reference number: 23960278. Anglian Water expected to investigate within 1 week. Updates on

https://anglianwtr.page.link/o92my29jPUk1Ajew8

All Saints Church (Cath Jones).

Barbara's Day at Number 39 was a lovely day and very successful, in spite of the change of venue! Again, we are so grateful to all those (too many to mention individually by name) who gave their time both on the day, and also before and after, putting up (and taking down!) marquees, transporting equipment from all ends of the village and returning it afterwards, baking cakes, donating things to sell, manning stalls, serving delicious lunches and refreshments, washing up etc. Special thanks to the Dekkers who so kindly gave up a precious half term so we could use their lovely garden.....a good profit was made that will go towards paying the bills! Thanks to all who came - we hope you enjoyed yourselves. We are holding the annual Flower Festival this weekend (8-10 July) from 10.00- 5.00. On the Saturday and Sunday, there will be beautiful floral arrangements in church to admire (and smell!) as well as homemade refreshments and lunches served in the Victorian schoolroom by the gate. There will also be a bric-a-brac stall with books and other bits and pieces on sale. On Monday, the church and flowers will be open for those who couldn't make it at the weekend. Please come and see for yourself- I am sure you won't be disappointed!

Finally, we are looking forward to a special joint service with St Peter's on 30 July. It will be held at Rockland St Peter's church at 11am (please note different time) and is taking a Songs of Praise theme. Food will be available and we hope everyone will come and bring a shared picnic to eat after the service and have a good chat! Families are especially welcome as this will be informal, so children will not need to be silent as in the 'old days'!

Chapel Green Meadow (Sue Steel).

CS confirmed that Sue Steel had kindly accepted the role of Chairperson of Chapel Green Meadow Committee, since Carolyn had moved away from the village. Sue will keep the PC up to date on Chapel Green activities in the future. The Clerk read out an email received from CGMC meeting held on 20 June 2023.

Visit to Chapel Green. The Committee had a brief walk to Chapel Green to admire the spectacular show of flowers. There are currently at least 52 Common Spotted Orchid and 5 Bee Orchid flower spikes. The sleepers behind the parking area have done a good job of defining the meadow edge during the Anglian Water sewage works, and it has been treated with care by the workers and other road users. Chapel Green hay cutting. This year, in order to avoid the time and cost of arranging the cut externally, the committee will opt to use members' equipment to carry out the main cut.

Chapel Green sign. Mick and Gella agreed to renovate the sign, which has become discoloured by sunlight. They have the key to the display and new materials will be posted once renovation is finished. Sue will post a new notice of Mobile Library dates (not yet available), though at present it is unable to visit Chapel Street due to Anglian Water sewage works. Jim and Clare have offered to organise and pay for a sign showing something like "Chapel Green Meadow - Rocklands Parish Council" to emphasise that this is Rocklands Parish Council owned land. Options to be presented to the next CGMC meeting. Meadow map. Karen Rosenberry will print the finished meadow map.

Gardening and climate change event to be held at West Wickham Village Hall on 12 August. Jim will speak and CGMC members are invited to present their experience with Chapel Green wildflower meadow. Next meeting to be arranged. Possibly early August to plan the cut.

Rocklands Village Hall (DJ)

Lighting and heating have been upgraded. CCTV has been installed, three cameras with number plate recognition. Village Hall enormously indebted to Cllr. Harrison and Cllr. Ford for their help with installation and training.

Cyril Ruffles has looked after the Village Hall since the 1950s. To help Cyril there is now a young man helping with the cleaning. The grounds are maintained by Tom Bird Gardening Services. Trees with Ash die-back are a problem and need to consult a qualified tree surgeon.

Signed	 Date	

Autumn Show to be held on 9 September, followed by an auction of produce etc. and a Barn Dance. There will be 11 trade stands on the field, exhibits and judging. Bucket List will be providing food.

11. To report on financial matters

11.1 Financial position

11.1	Financial pos	ition		
	Bank account	t balances on Monday 3 July 2023		
	Barclays Com	munity Account	£	8446.19
	Barclays Sav	er (Reserve) Account	£	338.27
		TOTAL as per bank	£	8784.46
	Summary			
	RNP Rockland	ds Neighbourhood Plan	£	200.60 **
	Community F	und (Coronation donations - £800)	£	534.95
	RPC Rockland	ls Parish Council	£	8048.91
		TOTAL as per bank	£	8784.46
	** Origi	nal donation from Breckland/Groundworks for £500.		
11.2	Money in sin	ce last meeting (15 May 2023)		
	5/6/202	3 Barclays Saver A/C Interest	£	0.70
		TOTAL IN	£	0.70
11.3	Money out s	ince last meeting (15 May 2023)		
	11.3.1 Stan	ding Orders/Direct Debits		
	25/5/2023	NPower Electricity (DD)	£	52.49
	1/6/2023	Clerk's wages (SO)	£	307.88
	19/6/2023	NPower Electricity (DD)	£	48.82
	3/7/2023	Clerk's wages (SO)	£	307.88
		TOTAL OUT	£	717.07
	11.3.2 Cheq	ues out (to sign)		
	CHQ 793	Zurich Municipal Insurance - Annual Insurance	£	241.00 SIGNED
	CHQ 795	Donation. Little Rockys. Guttering/Water Butt	£	200.00
	CHQ 796	Donation - Rockland All Saints Church PCC	£	100.00
	CHQ 797	Donation - St. Peters PCC Rocklands	£	100.00
	CHQ 798	Donation - Central Norfolk Methodist Church	£	70.00
	CHQ 799	Donation - Rockland Playing Field	£	130.00
	CHQ 800	Donation - Rockland Village Hall	£	130.00
	CHQ 801	K&M Lighting services - 1 months June 2023	£	15.30
	CHQ 802	Cllr. Tim Ford – Reimburse Adult defib. pads.	£	51.95
	CHQ 803	Cllr. David Howie – Ink cartridges	£	37.07
		TOTAL OUT	£	1075.32

Finance/Clerk's Notes:

Dog Poo bins.

The Clerk has checked with owner and the new dog poo bin outside their bungalow at the end of Thieves Lane is now being emptied regularly.

Still need to agree where last new bin is to be sited. The Clerk had received an email from Breckland saying they do not service bins on private land. Could be added to their schedule but would be a chargeable service to the Parish Council. Cllr. Ford said he would site the bin (on highways land) and take photos to use to get confirmation from Breckland/Highways. Sponsor money still to be collected.

VAT. Approximately £187 to be claimed.

C: ~ . ~ ~ d	Data
Signed	Date

12.0 To consider planning applications

A planning application had recently been refused by Breckland Planning on 2 June 2023. One of the reasons given by Breckland included and finally acknowledged that Rocklands was significantly in excess of their housing allocation. The Parish Council had been trying to get acknowledgement to this for a very long time.

The Clerk read out the paragraph: "The site fall outsides the defined settlement of Rocklands classified as a Village with Boundaries and is not immediately adjacent to the settlement boundary. Furthermore, the 5% growth for this Village has already been significantly exceeded. The proposed development is therefore unacceptable in principle and would not constitute sustainable development contrary Policies GEN03, GEN05 and HOU04 of the adopted Local Plan as well as having regard to the NPPF (2021)." The Parish Council were delighted with this confirmation.

- 12.1 Planning outcomes since last meeting
 - 12.1.1 3PL/2023/0281/F KIDD Staffords Farm Sandy Lane NR17 1XF, Change of use from annex to separate dwelling (275) REFUSED
- 12.2 Applications pending outcome

3PL/2021/1547/F SOUTHGATE/Land south of Swangey Lane/8x poultry houses etc. (268). The Parish Council was concerned about the amount of time a decision was taking.
3PL/2023/0241/VAR DEVLIN Allisons Farm 82 The Street NR17 1UX, Variation of Conditions 2, 3, 5, 9, 14 & 15 on 3PL/2021/0697/F (Proposed residential development) (271)
APP/F2605/W/22/3312539 Appeal BECKER Stone Barn Mount Pleasant, Proposed New Holiday Cottage (274)

- 12.3 New applications since last meeting (Monday 15 May 2023)
 - 12.3.1 3PL/2023/0521/VAR CJB DEVELOPMENTS Site on corner of Mill Lane and Green Lane NR17 1UA, Variation of Conditions 2 & 5 on 3PL/2022/1199/VAR - to allow minor changes to scheme prior to completion (276)

This was discussed and all Parish Councillors agreed they had NO OBJECTION.

12.3.2 3PL/2023/0539/F POLLARD Land at Kirk Hall Rocklands Road NR17 1XN, Conversion of an existing barn to 3 holiday lets (277)

This application was discussed. There were no real neighbours, the nearest being some way away. All Parish Councillors agreed they had NO OBJECTION.

12.3.3 3PL/2023/0536/F MAPLE BARNS GROOMING Maple Barns Magpie Lane NR17 1UU, Siting of a temporary static caravan (12.5m \times 4m) to enable applicants to stay on site when equestrian activities are required such as foaling for a maximum period of 2 years (278)

This application was discussed with the applicants present. The councillors acknowledged that there are no grounds for objection to the siting of a temporary static caravan for a maximum period of two years only - even though the site is well outside the settlement boundary.

Councillors were concerned that if permission was granted for a temporary static caravan this might lead to a subsequent application for a permanent dwelling. The applicants were asked, 'Does the applicant plan to not be fooling mares after this period - or are we looking at yet another means to applying for a dwelling, by 'the back door'? The applicants spoke to confirm that this was indeed the case - and that they intended to apply for permission for a permanent dwelling.

It was noted that a previous application (3PL/2020/1120/F) for a permanent dwelling on the site had been refused, and that the Parish Council had objected. The Parish Council reiterated that they would not support development outside the settlement boundary in the future and also explained Breckland Planning had recently confirmed that Rocklands has significantly exceeded its housing allocation of 5% growth for the village. The applicants then spoke to warn that, if the Parish Council were to object to a future application for a permanent dwelling on the site, the applicants would sell the site to developers.

Signed	 Date

12.3.4 3PL/2023/0571/HOU PRESSLAND Vandeen Mill Lane NR17 1TX, single storey front & rear extensions, removal of existing chimney plus conversion of existing conservatory into a bedroom with raised flat roof (279)

Some residents were not happy but not objecting. All Parish Councillars agreed they

Some residents were not happy but not objecting. All Parish Councillors agreed they had NO OBJECTION.

12.3.5 3PL/2023/0599/F SIMMONDS Langdale Attleborough Road NR17 1UE, Change of use to allow an attached annexe to be used for long-term rentals (280)

This application was discussed and the Parish Councillors agreed they had NO OBJECTION to the application per se. Some points of inaccuracy of some of the data provided on the application form were however noted, some being wrong and some contradictory. In answer to the question 'How will surface water be disposed of?', the application form ticks 'Main sewer'. However, the new sewer works on Attleborough Road are now complete - and no lateral has been provided to 'Langdale' for a connection. 'Use Class' the application form states 'Holiday Accommodation/Short Term Lets'. However, the supplied 'Design and Access Statement' states (page 01) 'Change of Use to allow for an existing attached annexe to be used for long-term rentals/holiday lets.' And (page 03) 'Holiday let/Long Term Rental'. Breckland's 'Proposal' title is 'Change of use to allow an attached annexe to be used for long-term rentals. Which is correct? Page 05 of the Design and Access Statement states that 'The access point is located upon a 30mph straight section of Attleborough Road'. This is wrong, as the speed limit here is 40mph.

The Application Notice displayed by Breckland had been placed on the opposite side of the road to Langdale, attached to a road sign. The Parish Council wrote to Breckland saying it was in a dangerous position as it was impossible for residents to read unless they crossed the busy 40mph carriageway and stood in the road as there is no pavement at this point. This placement would not alert neighbours to the existence of a planning application. Simon Wood, Breckland Planning replied saying it was sometimes difficult to find a suitable location.

13.0 To update on the Rocklands Neighbourhood Plan (RNP) and Local Plan (LP)

The Parish Council believes it is important to have a **Neighbourhood Plan** in place. Much work has already been done. There has been no response to the advert in the Rocklander for anyone interested to continue the good work. RNP - therefore still pending.

Breckland Local Plan

Following my report on flooding at our last Parish Council meeting, I wrote to Andrew D'Arcy (Breckland Planning Policy Manager) on 15 May - urging that Rocklands is one of those parishes consulted when their consultants compile the evidence base for the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment in the emerging new Local Plan. Other than an email read receipt on 22 May, I have received no further communication on the matter.

14 To discuss any correspondence.

Mobile Deployable Surveillance Cameras. The Clerk had received an email from Breckland about these cameras that they were hoping to procure. They are looking for places to trial the cameras, particularly in communities where there is a high level of fly-tipping and/or anti-social behaviour. The cameras are high specification trail cameras with secure, encrypted SIM card storage. They would work on a motion detection basis followed by a short series of snapped images to assist with identifying potential offenders. There will be suitable signage to inform the public that surveillance is taking place in the area. The presence of cameras, plus the signage will act as a significant deterrent to the issues. Parish Councils have been asked to identify any problem areas. We should let Damion Wickes know if we identify issues.

Fly tipping doesn't seem to be an issue in Rocklands. It does have areas where dog poo left behind is a recurring problem.

Signed	 Date	

A more serious discussion followed regards the amount of disposable vapes being found on the playing fields as well as cans and other smoking paraphernalia. This was noted by Damion Wicks.

15. AOB - To receive items for the next agenda.

John Brown mentioned the potholes at St. Peters that had now been temporarily filled in.

16. Date of next Meeting - Monday 4 September 2023, 7pm.

The meeting closed at 21:12

Rocklands SID - Vehicles from Great Ellingham Direction (page 1)

Start	09/06/2023	02/10/2022	30/05/2022	03/02/2022	04/40/2024	03/06/2021
					04/10/2021	
Finish	30/06/2023	04/11/2022	01/07/2022	04/03/2022	04/11/2021	03/07/2021
Total Vehicles	28,266	48,149	43,985	42,402	45,575	47,333
Average Vehicles/day	1,344	1,448	1,373	1,580	1,470	1,571
Morning Peak	08:00-09:00	08:15-09:15	08:15-09:15	08:00-09:00	07:3008:30	08:00-09:00
Afternoon Peak	15:30-16:30	16:45-17:45	15:30-16:30	16:30-17:30	16:30-17:30	15:30-16:30
Max Speed (date)	70 (17/06/23 - 00:20)	75 (09/10/22 - 17:15)	75 (24/06/22 - 19:35)	75 (25/02/22 - 04:40)	75 (20/10/21 - 19:35)	80 (20/06/21 - 14:35)
0-40 mph	23,953	41,077	34,173	32,596	36,127	37,794
%	84.74	85.31	77.69	76.87	79.27	79.85
40+ mph	4,313	7,072	9,812	9,806	9,448	9,539
%	15.26	14.69	22.31	23.13	20.73	20.15
45+ mph	1,212	2,020	3,234	3,323	3,040	3,349
%	4.29	4.20	7.35	7.84	6.67	7.08
45-50	921	1,497	2,350	2,338	2,137	2,291
%	3.26	3.11	5.34	5.51	4.69	4.84
50-55	219	406	646	744	645	760
%	0.77	0.84	1.47	1.75	1.42	1.61
55-60	59	83	175	181	188	224
%	0.21	0.17	0.40	0.43	0.41	0.47
60-65	12	27	50	45	60	60
%	0.04	0.06	0.11	0.11	0.13	0.13
65-70	1	4	12	13	8	9
%	0.00	0.01	0.03	0.03	0.02	0.02
70-75	0	3	1	2	2	4
%	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.01
75-80	0	0	0	0	0	1
%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
80-85	0	0	0	0	0	0
%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Signed	 Date

Rocklands SID - Vehicles from Great Ellingham Direction (page 2)

	T			T	Г	Г
Start	03/02/2021	04/10/2020	03/07/2020	03/04/2020	06/01/2020	12/09/2019
Finish	04/03/2021	02/11/2020	04/08/2020	04/05/2020	05/02/2020	11/10/2019
Total Vehicles	35,237	44,434	44,605	24,131	49,654	41,427
Average Vehicles/day	1,215	1,532	1,399	773	1,653	1,433
Morning Peak	07:15-08:15	08:00-09:00	07:30-08:30	07:00-08:00	07:15-08:15	08:00-09:00
Afternoon Peak	15:00-16:00	15:15-16:15	16:45-17:45	16:30-17:30	15:30-16:30	17:00-18:00
Max Speed (date)	85 (28/02/21 - 21:10)	75 (10/10/20 - 06:30)	75 (10/07/20 - 19:10)	75 (10/04/20 - 17:45)	80 (17/01/2020 - 21:45)	75 (07/10/2019 - 07:05)
0-40 mph	27,054	34,808	33,509	14,900	38,267	32,681
%	76.78	78.34	75.12	61.75	77.07	78.89
40+ mph	8,183	9,626	11,096	9,231	11,387	8,746
%	23.22	21.66	24.88	38.25	22.93	21.11
45+ mph	3,022	3,487	4,062	4,357	3,932	3,088
%	8.58	7.85	9.11	18.06	7.92	7.45
45-50	2,047	2,385	2,749	2,667	2,802	2,105
%	5.81	5.37	6.16	11.05	5.64	5.08
50-55	720	790	943	1,156	865	705
%	2.04	1.78	2.11	4.79	1.74	1.70
55-60	199	237	281	389	186	210
%	0.56	0.53	0.63	1.61	0.37	0.51
60-65	41	57	70	121	63	59
%	0.12	0.13	0.16	0.50	0.13	0.14
65-70	11	14	16	20	13	8
%	0.03	0.03	0.04	0.08	0.03	0.02
70-75	3	4	3	4	1	1
%	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.02	0.00	0.00
75-80	0	0	0	0	2	0
%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
80-85	1	0	0	0	0	0
%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Signed	Date	
Signed	 Date	